FEBERIATEREAIE
Created by Generative Al

l :

. Acce erating

aw Industriolisoil
|

www.hkpc.org

Oin @ %0 IS

BIZEENRSE R FBRS
Independent Auditor’s Report

and Financial Statements
2022-23




B &%
CONTENTS

B ZBERE
Independent Auditor’s Report

mEPBRRER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI R

Statement of Financial Position

REESEBR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

meaWxikE

Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

FEEERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

EHEREE

Statement of Comprehensive Income

REBSRER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEUBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10

11

12



B AR RE
Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE MEMBERS OF HONG KONG PRODUCTIVITY COUNCIL
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong Productivity Council
(the “Council”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 5 to 60, which
comprise the consolidated and the Council's statement of financial position as at 31 March
2023, and the consolidated income and expenditure account, the consolidated and the
Council’s statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
funds and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group and the Council as at 31 March 2023, and of the financial performance
of the Group and the Council and the Group’s cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management of the Council are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and for such internal control as management
of the Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management of the Council are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management of the Council either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the Council members in overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 18 of the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the
Council.

HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 202223 3
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision

HMREAERAERAEE -

and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.
MEMEBEIN  RMEBAZESER T ENET We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
HE - HETH EAEFERE  BERMER scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
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deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number P05440

Hong Kong, 20 July 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2023%3 A31H 31 March 2023

2023 2022
b BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
Y% - RE TR Property, plant and equipment 6 191,696 186,753
mYAE Intangible assets 7 13,643 9492
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 13 569 861
205,908 197,106
REBEE Current assets
FEUBR N R B AR EN & B Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 279,567 229,706
e - BT EZ L TEEFR Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,996,984 1,715,170
2,276,551 1,944,876
RENEE Current liabilities
ERERREMREEE Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11 1,849,725 1,544,750
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 533 461
FERHITE Tax payable 23(0) 46 162
1,850,304 1,545,373
REBEEFE Net current assets 426,247 399,503
BWEERARBERS Total assets less current liabilities 632,155 596,609
FEREBAE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 103 466
BEE Net assets 632,052 596,143
was Total funds
FENBEMERNES LFEE Capital subvention fund and reserves 630,049 594,137
attributable to the Council
IR R 2 Non-controlling interests 15(d) 2,003 2,006
wnES Total funds 15 632,052 596,143

HEENRR2023F 7 A 20 BROEWFT A o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 July 2023.

Sunny Tan Emil Yu Chen-on
BRAE1E TRz
EF AIE/E
Chairman Deputy Chairman

EENR B REERE RIEHRE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23 5
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Statement of Financial Position

HZE2023F3 831 BIEFE

Year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
b BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
FEREBEE Non-current assets
Y% - RE TR Property, plant and equipment 190,999 186,030
BV EE Intangible assets 13,627 9,459
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 13 424 847
RSB AR E Investments in subsidiaries 18,722 18,722
223,772 215,058
REBEE Current assets
JEURBR N R E At BN & B Accounts receivable and other current assets 9 272,188 225,526
FEULHT B A R RUE Amounts due from subsidiaries 12 1,238 1,276
e BIERANMESREFER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 10 1,963,741 1,686,493
2,237,167 1,913,295
REAE Current liabilities
EAERREMRESEE Accounts payable and other current liabilities 11 1,838,280 1,538,262
FEFTH B A RIZRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 12 11,685 12,024
HEBE Lease liabilities 14 466 443
1,850,431 1,550,729
REEEFE Net current assets 386,736 362,566
BWEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 610,508 577,624
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities 14 - 466
FEE Net assets 610,508 577,158
wEs Total funds 15 610,508 577,158

HEENRR2023F 7 A 20 BROEWFAIEH o
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 July 2023.

Sunny Tan
BRAE1E
E

Chairman

6 HEHR BURBESRE RIHRES

Emil Yu Chen-on
TRz
AIESE
Deputy Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Funds

HZE2023F3 31 HIEFE  Yearended 31 March 2023

BEREENR
Attributable to the Council
%N
ghe WA FiERES
Capital ERfE BRERE Non- L]
Subvention Revenue Exchange #%  controlling Total
Fund reserve reserve Total interests Funds
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
1202154 1 B At 1 April 2021 105610 432,713 2234 540,557 1713 542270
FRNEEG Surplus for the year = 59,584 = 59,584 209 59,793
FREMEEKE : Other comprehensive income for the year:
MEhE A\ RAME Exchange difference on translation of
(THhE]) #555RE 8 financial statements of operations in the
EXER People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") - - 921 921 84 1,005
FREZENSEE Total comprehensive income for the year = 59,584 91 60,505 293 60,798
EREBSEE (3 150) Movement in capital subvention fund
(note 15(a)) (6925) - - (6925) - (6925)
202243 A 31 REV&ER At 31 March 2022 98,685 492,297 3,155 594,137 2,006 596,143
202254 A1 B At 1 April 2022 98,685 492,297 3,155 594,137 2,006 596,143
FREH Surplus for the year - 43,734 - 43,734 186 43,920
FREMPEKE - Other comprehensive income for the year:
MEPRERRANELZR Exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of operations in
the PRC - - (2,106) (2,106) (189) (2,295)
FRRHEKSAHE Total comprehensive income for the year - 43,734 (2,106) 41,628 3) 41,625
EREES 28 (M 150) Movement in capital subvention fund
(note 15(a)) (5,716) - - (5,716) - (5,716)
R2023F 3 A31 HR& SR At 31 March 2023 92,969 536,031 1,049 630,049 2,003 632,052

HEENR BB RE KRS
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account

HZE2023F3 A31HIEFE Yearended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
b BT T BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
WA Income
KEMETEB BT A B Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 239,283 235,771
ARAS WA Service income 17 752,028 666,208
HAWA Other income 18 22,010 20,648
1,013,321 922,627
>4 Expenditure
BEHE Staff emoluments 19 (482,302) (448,968)
Hib i Other expenses 22 (492,648) (420,621)
BRB AT B R Surplus before tax 38,371 53,038
FrfS#i Income tax expense 23(a) (167) (170)
38,204 52,868
WEREBSE A Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 5,716 6,925
FRELH Surplus for the year 43,920 59,793
BER Attributable to:
EENR The Council 15(b) 43,734 59,584
IR R 2 Non-controlling interests 15(d) 186 209
43,920 59,793

8 4ENE B HETHE REIEHRE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2023F3 31 HIEFE  Yearended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
BT T PEEEFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FREEH Surplus for the year 43,920 59,793
Hit 2 EK = Other comprehensive income
AR E R ENHEEWERAN Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
Hih 2 ERE income and expenditure account in subsequent periods:
HERE AR EMEERERE A Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of (2,295) 1,005
EHER operations in the People’s Republic of China
FREMEEE (Fi1&) Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2,295) 1,005
FREENFEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 41,625 60,798
BER: Attributable to:
EENR The Council 41,628 60,505
R MR Non-controlling interests (3) 293
41,625 60,798

HEENR BB RE KRS
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2023F3 A31HIEFE Yearended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
b BETT BT T
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
WA Income
KEMETEB BT A B Government subvention for recurrent activities 16 239,283 235,771
ARAS WA Service income 17 719,001 633,746
HAWA Other income 18 21,619 20,280
979,903 889,797
*H Expenditure
BB & Staff emoluments 19 (473,405) (440,548)
Hthsz Other expenses 22 (473,148) (399,883)
BRI AT R4 Surplus before tax 33,350 49,366
FriSHt Income tax expenses 23(a) - -
33,350 49,366
REREBSEA Transfer from capital subvention fund 15(a) 5,716 6,925
FRAEBREZEW = Surplus and total comprehensive income for 15(b) 39,066 56,291

the year

10 4£EAB B HEETHE REMKEHE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2023F3 31 HIEFE  Yearended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Bt BT T PEEEFIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
KETHEENRESRE Cash flows from operating activities
R A2 Surplus before tax 38,371 53,038
FHEIA Adjustments for:
FEUA Interest income 18 (6,518) (817)
HEBEZFE Interest expense on lease liabilities 22 32 44
VI - BB TR LS8 Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 22 5,187 114
B EENEESE Loss on disposal of intangible asset 22 4 -
e Depreciation 22 37,326 41,480
gy Amortisation 22 7,048 4594
EEEERE Provision for expected credit losses 9(c) (141) 1,212
EEESEBA 2 KERR Operating surplus before working capital 81,309 99,665
changes
JERURBE R M H AR EVEE (3h1) ~  (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable and (50,070) 31,946
Ve other current assets
ZRRIRE LM Increase in restricted cash (245,643) (451,926)
FERTRR R R E 7R B & &I a0 Increase in accounts payable and other current 306,563 527,222
liabilities
EEELERIRS Cash generated from operations 92,159 206,907
B REPEEH PRC corporate income tax paid 23(c) (271) (228)
RETHEENRESHRETE Net cash from operating activities 91,888 206,679
RETHELENEESRE Cash flows from investing activities
BUFI L Interest received 6,518 817
g =1{E A A _EEHER Increase in fixed deposits with original maturities (600,677) (321,429)
over 3 months when placed
=18 A LA L 5E BifF SR B B A 1S 08 Proceeds from matured fixed deposits with 475,477 337,590
original maturities over 3 months when placed
HEME - BRE M RABFTSIE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 14 786
equipment
BEWE « BEERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (47,047) (30,609)
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (11,206) (5,690)
RETBHEANESREFE Net cash used in investing activities (176,921) (18,534)
REIBHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
EEHERE Lease payments 14 (520) (565)
BMETEEANESRETHE Net cash used in financing activities (520) (565)
WENMEEBY ORd) ILIFEE  Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (85,553) 187,580
Re MR SEEBYHVRE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 254,528 66,095
EREFH) 2 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (3,669) 853
Be R RESEEYHREGE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10 165,306 254,528

EENR B REENRE RIEHRE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2023F3 A31HIEFE Yearended 31 March 2023

1. E£EINRMEEEN 1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION

EBEENRER [EENR]) R—RBITFEBHK
& 71967 FIRIR KB EE RERIEHI) BRAL - &
ENRZMMtEET LS I AEB LB
EZRISTREENKE -

The Council is a subvented body corporate established in 1967 under the Hong Kong
Productivity Council Ordinance. The address of its registered office and principal place of
operation is at HKPC Building, 78 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

EENRRENBAR (BB E£H]) HEEEBER
ERSEESN  SBEBRFAER - WiBBHRE

The principal activities of the Council and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
are to promote increased productivity, encourage the more efficient utilisation of resources,

RERBEE - FEREN  IRHEEREANE I and to advise measures designed to increase productivity via development or dissemination
HE D EFEHE o of programmes, methods or techniques for the business sectors in Hong Kong.
MBS A &R Information about subsidiaries
EENRMBRARMNFBNT : Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries are as follows:
=g EEa1i)2 AV BERTR SEBR HREE HHE FEEK
Name EE i 2 HEMEAR = HEEHE ARFEE  Principal
Place of Particulars Group's Held Heldby activities
incorporation of issued and effective by the subsidiaries
and operation registered capital interest Council
HEENRHR B P& HE 10,000 7T 100% 100% - BEEENRERE
(3Z8%) BRAA Hong Kong HK$10,000 FIEB K RE R
HKPC Technology (Holdings) Commercialisation
Company Limited of patents project
deliverables of HKPC
EEN B 75 # 20,000,000 7T 100% 100% - REER
(1ERR) BRAA Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 Investment holding
Productivity
(Holdings) Limited
FEN (R H P& HE 5,000,000 7T 100% - 100%  EERIRIEARTS
BB RAR] PRC HK$5,000,000 Consultancy and
Productivity (Dongguan) training services
Consulting Co. Ltd.
EED CRII G 75 # 1,610,000 7T 100% - 100%  BARIRIENARTS
BHARAT] PRC HK$1,610,000 Consultancy and
Productivity (Shenzhen) training services
Consulting Co. Ltd.
RY R E ) E a3 AR 1,540,000 7T 64.94% - 64.94%  EIR RIEFIIARTS
BRAR PRC RMB1,540,000 Consultancy and
Shenzhen SZ-HK Productivity training services
Foundation Co. Ltd.
Y RABEE S a3 AREE50,0007C 64.94% - 100%  HFFIARSS
Eg b [[== T PRC RMB50,000 Training services

Shenzhen SZ-HK
Productivity Foundation
Training Institute

12 4EHR BURBEHRE RIHRE

HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23



1. XE£ENRMEEEN (&)

BEEBTRATEHREREM AT DO (“FLAR)
HY B R th %

FLARZE—RERER QR MEESH B FLARKIHE
—R B ° FLAIRER /71 B 2% Bl 3T A %5 AL ER MR A R R
HE REEBLCEZREREERE -

BELEENDEFLARNME—KE @ BIREEKFTER
WiHRGER - EENRTEZH ] ZERaiER - I
TEEEBE A FLARBVIER| R D 2 It E ¥R o ALt
EENBIARE HFFLARKIIRE ©

BEREEDRERFINBIF REM AL (FEH)
("siTc”)

SITC = —E= A ABAL - MAEEHBRE SITC A
BALZ— o SITCRARIRHAIF R BB HBNIELRT
NIRRT M KRR -

BEREARIMBEBAEEER  FEEASBLURE
REREHKE AT EBREEABSEFE - B
REENRIEZH A ZEHRNER T HEEBE
HOTCHEFIRBNFELZE®R - AEENBIL
RABESITCHITRE ©

2. ERAEBMBREREL (FEUHR
HER )

@) MERFE EETEBMEREED - R
2022F 4 81 BEX

ERETEAE165F  WE - BEK&E - (FIEH
ZAER] PR R PTS 50R
EREEAIEI7E BESHN-BITAHNZRE

ZAEET

BB ISR E 2R S2EBSIESR
EXL i )

BB IERE LR BB SRS LRI 155 -
2018 FF 2 2020 FF BB BT HREE
2 FENE Al - BRI RS 2ERE

oS- EMIA - HEEE
ERFE 4 - BERETE
BATE S HE RS 16 5% - i
AR GIEIERT

PR2022F 4 A1 BRI AT EIERT BB B EAE
A AEN B STHRRLBEEATE

HEENR BB RE KRS

1. COUNCIL AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Agreement related to Hong Kong Industrial Artificial Intelligence and
Robotics Centre Limited (“FLAIR")

FLAIR was incorporated as a company limited by guarantee with the Council as the sole
member. FLAIR aims to develop innovative solutions on artificial intelligence and robotics
technologies to facilitate the intelligent manufacturing for Hong Kong enterprises.

Although the Council is the sole member of FLAIR, the Council has not consolidated the
results of FLAIR since under the terms of the agreement entered into with the Government,
the Council is not exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable
returns from its involvement with FLAIR.

Hong Kong Productivity Council Shenzhen Innovation and Technology Centre
(Futian) (“SITC")

SITC was formed as an institution with the Council as one of the founders of SITC. SITC aims
to provide non-profit making public services relating to the application of innovation and
technology and support the development of the Greater Bay Area.

According to the relevant law and regulations of the People’s Republic of China, an institution
has no shareholders or members, accordingly no profits can be distributed to the Council. As
the Council is not exposed to, and does not have the rights or the power to affect variable
returns from its involvement with SITC, the Council has not consolidated the results of SITC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - Effective 1 April 2022

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("“HKAS") 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before
Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020

Amendments to HKFRS 1 — First-time Adoption
of HKFRS; Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Financial
Instruments; Amendments to HKAS 41 —
Agriculture; lllustrative Examples Accompanying
HKFRS 16

The new or revised HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April 2022 did not have any material
impact on the Council's accounting policies.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b)  New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimate’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single Transaction'
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendment to HKFRS 16

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group performed a preliminary assessment on
the impact of the adoption of these issued but not yet effective HKFRSs, and expected no
significant impact to the Group's results of operations and financial position upon adoption.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Productivity Council Ordinance.

(b)  Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical
cost convention and are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS") and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Council and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”). A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Council. Control is achieved when
the Council has power over the investee, is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Council, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Income and expenditure and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the Council and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of
the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the income and expenditure account. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to the income and
expenditure account or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

In the Council’s statement of financial position, investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less
impairment losses.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Council, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(@)  Non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
within total funds, separately from funds attributable to the Council. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
and expenditure account and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total surplus or deficit and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the Council. Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as reserve transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated total funds to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

(b)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Hong Kong Productivity Council Building (“HKPC Building”) 50 years

Leasehold improvements
- Office 10 years
- Non-office 3 years

Furniture and equipment 3to 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the income and expenditure account on
the date of retirement or disposal.

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software costs are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software and are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation of computer software is charged to the income and expenditure
account on a straight-line basis over the assets'estimated useful lives of 3 years.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Leases
The Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost (which comprises the initial
measurement of lease liabilities, initial direct costs, reinstatement costs, any payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received), and subsequently
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used.
Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease
liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by
lease payments made.

Payments associated with short-term leases (i.e, leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and low value leases are recognised on a straight-line basis as expenses in the income
and expenditure account.

The Group as a lessor

Rental income is recognised in the income and expenditure account on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities

Investments in equity securities that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, which includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the investee;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments by the investee;

- It becoming probable that the investee will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the investee; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in the investee
below its cost.

For investments in subsidiaries and an associate (including those recognised using the
equity method), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 4(e)(iii).

(i) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group assesses an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL’) for all debt instruments
stated at cost or amortised cost. ECL are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)
General approach

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of
a significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECL. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but
instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group
has established an allowance matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

(iii)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and investments in subsidiaries may be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)
(iii)  Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows independently of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure account if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income and expenditure account in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(f)  Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.

(9)  Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of original maturities when placed.

(i)  Employee benefits
(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an expense in the
income and expenditure account when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in the income and expenditure account except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in funds,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart from differences which arise on initial recognition of
assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will
result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence
of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

() Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the income and expenditure,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in the income and expenditure
account as follows:

(i) Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent activities are recognised as income in the income and
expenditure account when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with them and that the subventions will be received. Government
subventions that compensate the Group for expenditure incurred are recognised as income
in the income and expenditure account on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenditure are incurred. Unspent subventions for recurrent activities arising in the
financial year will be retained by the Council as reserves up to a limit as agreed with the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the Government”). Amount
in excess of the limit will be returned to the Government in the following financial year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1) Income recognition (continued)
(i) Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

(iii)  Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from service contracts is recognised when control of services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount of
consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Service income is generally recognised over time, using an input method to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group or the Group's performance does
not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date. The input method recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs for
satisfaction of the services. Where the criteria for over-time recognition are not met, service
income is recognised at a point in time when control of the service is transferred to the
customer.

(m) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

(n)  Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received a consideration (or an amount of consideration that is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays the consideration before the Group transfers goods or services
to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant and equipment, or
intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset
if all of the following criteria are met:

(i) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify.

(ii) The costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying
performance obligations in the future.

(iii) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the income and expenditure
account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the
asset related is recognised. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

(p) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the month are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the average rate for that month. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rate at the reporting date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of an enterprise outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in reserve which relate to that enterprise is reclassified from reserve to
the income and expenditure account when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Capital subvention fund

The capital subvention fund accumulated from the prior years to compensate the Group for
the costs of the subvented assets is recognised in the income and expenditure account over
the useful lives of the subvented assets.

()  Related parties

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group if that
person:

0] has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) isa member of key management personnel of the Group.

(b)  Anentity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group.

(if) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

(vii) ~ The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)  Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period are
described below.

Estimate of revenue and costs of work

Depending on the terms of individual contract of services, the Group recognises its service
income over time if the Group has met the criteria in paragraph 35 of HKFRS 15 or at a point
in time when the control of the assets is transferred to the customer. For service income
recognised over time, the Group reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue and
contract costs prepared for each contract as the contract progresses. Budgeted service
income is determined in accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted service costs which mainly comprise staff costs and costs of materials are prepared
by experienced management. In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets by comparing the
budgeted amounts to the actual amounts incurred.

26 H£ENP BZREETHRE REMIEHE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23



5. BEAEHEFMMEE (@

BHEEERRENTE
HRBBIER A ENEREE  RARESEBER
B EFEHEARR  BRRROLEELLE
B e

RiEE :HrE!’] 23R - HEMERBEBRNFTERSRIAT
BEARHIE

- H i 55 B B IE IR IR ¢ A
- REBEEBEMNFEEESENEARMRR -
NMRERSERERENGEHAZR  EHEZRBEE

R ENEREEZ REEE - WE L SE
BRNEERR -

EENR BRSBTS E  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23 27

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortised cost
is an area that requires significant assumptions about future economic conditions and credit
behaviour.

Significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting requirements for
measuring expected credit loss, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk; and

- Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of expected
credit losses.

Where the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the financial assets at amortised cost and credit loss expenses in the period
in which such estimate is changed.



6. ¥ - BMEMNXZE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
&5
The Group
HEgF BRERRE
EEHKRE REIRE Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and wazm
Building improvements equipment Total
BETT BETT BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
202343 A31H 31 March 2023
RE: Cost
MW2022%4 818 At 1 April 2022 267,854 125,961 265,834 659,649
nNE Additions - 23,886 23,161 47,047
HE Disposals - (10,689) (26,997) (37,686)
BE Exchange adjustments - (86) (209) (295)
K 20233831 H At 31 March 2023 267,854 139,072 261,789 668,715
ZIHE . Accumulated depreciation
MW2022%4 818 At 1 April 2022 169,811 89,664 213,421 472,896
FEHE Charge for the year 5,346 11,716 19,774 36,836
HE B Written back on disposals - (5,928) (26,557) (32,485)
BE Exchange adjustments - (86) (142) (228)
K 20233831 H At 31 March 2023 175,157 95,366 206,496 477,019
BREFE - Net book value
M 202343 A31H At 31 March 2023 92,697 43,706 55,293 191,696
202263 A31H 31 March 2022
RE: Cost
®W2021%F4 818 At 1 April 2021 267,854 116,953 254,365 639,172
RE Additions = 12,392 18217 30,609
HE Disposals = (3,424) (6,834) (10,258)
HME R Exchange adjustments - 40 86 126
®202293 A31H At 31 March 2022 267,854 125,961 265,834 659,649
FEHE - Accumulated depreciation
®W2021%F4 818 At 1 April 2021 164,465 77318 199,403 441,186
FENE Charge for the year 5,346 15,050 20,570 40,966
HE D Written back on disposals - (2,744) (6,614) (9,358)
HME R Exchange adjustments - 40 62 102
®202293 A31H At 31 March 2022 169,811 89,664 213,421 472,896
BREFE - Net book value
R2022%3 A31H At 31 March 2022 98,043 36,297 52413 186,753
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6. W - BEMRZE &

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

*EHR
The Council
HEgF HEERRE
EEHKRE HEIR Furniture
HKPC Leasehold and FEEL
Building improvements equipment Total
BT T BT T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
20233 A31H 31 March 2023
RE: Cost
R202F4H1H At 1 April 2022 267,854 125,052 263,610 656,516
NE Additions - 23,886 22,813 46,699
k== Disposals - (10,689) (26,567) (37,256)
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 267,854 138,249 259,856 665,959
FEHE . Accumulated depreciation
R202F4H81H At 1 April 2022 169,811 88,756 211,919 470,486
FEHE Charge for the year 5,346 11,715 19,512 36,573
&R D Written back on disposals - (5,928) (26,171) (32,099)
20233 8318 At 31 March 2023 175,157 94,543 205,260 474,960
BRENFE - Net book value
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 92,697 43,706 54,596 190,999
20223 A31H 31 March 2022
RE: Cost
R2021F4 A1 H At 1 April 2021 267,854 116,084 252,503 636,441
nE Additions = 12,392 17,944 30,336
& Disposals - (3424) (6,337) (10,261)
®20229F3 8318 At 31 March 2022 267,854 125,052 263,610 656,516
e Accumulated depreciation
R2021 54 A1 H At 1 April 2021 164,465 76,450 198,152 439,067
FENE Charge for the year 5,346 15,050 20,381 40,777
& B o] Written back on disposals - (2,744) 6,614) (9,358)
R2022%F3HA31H At 31 March 2022 169,811 88,756 211,919 470,486
BREFE : Net book value
K2022F3 8318 At 31 March 2022 98,043 36,296 51,691 186,030

HEENR BB RE KRS
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7. BEREE

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

£H EENR
The Group The Council
BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’000
20233 H31H 31 March 2023
RE : Cost
R2022F4 A1 H At 1 April 2022 59,512 59,374
NE Additions 11,206 11,206
e Disposal (5,097) (5,084)
HE TR Exchange adjustments (13) -
20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 65,608 65,496
ZETEe ¢ Accumulated amortisation
R2022F 4818 At 1 April 2022 50,020 49,915
FIEEH Amortisation for the year 7,048 7,038
S 0] Written back on disposals (5,093) (5,084)
ME AR Exchange adjustments (10) -
R2023F3A31H At 31 March 2023 51,965 51,869
BREFE : Net book value
R 20233 A31H At 31 March 2023 13,643 13,627
20223 H31H 31 March 2022
RE : Cost
R2021F4 818 At 1 April 2021 53,817 53,693
NE Additions 5,690 5,681
HME R Exchange adjustments 5 =
R2022F3H31H At 31 March 2022 59,512 59,374
FtEe . Accumulated amortisation
R2021E4 518 At 1 April 2021 45422 45331
FIEHEH Amortisation for the year 4,594 4,584
HE T Exchange adjustments 4
202263 A31H At 31 March 2022 50,020 49915
BREFE : Net book value
R2022F3H31H At 31 March 2022 9,492 9,459
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8. RHBARMNIKRE 8. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

*EHR
The Council
2023 2022
BT T R T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEETRRG - WKANEFE Unlisted shares, at cost 20,010 20,010
B BB Less: Impairment loss (1,288) (1,288)
M3 A318 At 31 March 18,722 18,722
SENRBHBRABERNREARNFBESBRE Particulars of the Council’s subsidiaries as at the reporting date are disclosed in note 1.
PREE 1 A T LAHRER o
9. EUWRRRHMREBEE 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
£E EEHR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BT T BT T BT T BT I
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEUBR TR Accounts receivable 17,789 23,447 17,397 23,447
EHEE (ista) Contract assets (note a) 97,516 85,514 97,314 85,504
TEff 308 Prepayments 46,742 25,891 41,102 23,015
BRI (FiFED) Contract costs (note b) 68,473 50,904 68,473 50,904
Ye ME (b fE W IR Deposits and other receivables 50,455 45,499 49,310 44,205
280,975 231,255 273,596 227,075
o ORVE (BdEE ) Less: Impairment (note c) (1,408) (1,549) (1,408) (1,549)
279,567 229,706 272,188 225,526
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9. EUBRIAK

HiRBEE (8 9.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

@ BHNEE (@) Contract assets
L |
The Group

2023 2022
BET T PEEEFIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BREEEER Contract assets arising from
AR RS Consultancy 95,701 83,706
b=l Training 1,802 983
SLEE T ERRT Manufacturing support 13 825
ABHBEER Total contract assets 97,516 85,514

*EHR
The Council

2023 2022
BET T PE¥EFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

BREEEER Contract assets arising from
AR AR 7S Consultancy 95,499 83,696
53l Training 1,802 983
RIS LIRRTS Manufacturing support 13 825
BB EET Total contract assets 97,314 85,504

EHNEENS R REERRE - H3 - BEEER

B HETIYRES MRES RERE TR WA
MR - EUWERREE AR ek B A FE 15 B IR -
REKENERR  ERRENEEZBRAZERE
BN ERRYSRR -

R2021F4 818 SEMEENBNENEERED
Bl A&7 7T 132,430,000 F17 7T 132,410,000 ©

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from consultancy, training,
manufacturing support, publications and advertising, and exhibitions and study mission
services as the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful completion of
performance obligations. Upon completion of performance obligations, the amounts
recognised as contract assets are reclassified to accounts receivable.

The balance of contract assets at 1 April 2021 for the Group and the Council were
HK$132,430,000 and HK$132,410,000 respectively.
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9. EWERRRHEMRBEE &)

(@) BHREE #)
RIS BBFHREA REENRENT

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(@)  Contract assets (continued)

The expected timing of recovery of the contract assets at the reporting date is as follows:

£m

The Group
2023 2022
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 80,001 45,462
FFEEFERF 2-5 years 17,515 40,052
ABHBERER Total contract assets 97,516 85,514

*EHR

The Council
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—FNR Within one year 79,800 45,452
F_FEFRF 2-5 years 17,514 40,052
BHBEERE Total contract assets 97,314 85,504

(b) él\‘,\J Jﬁj&

ERMEZ A HRAEREBERITREREERNEL
B RRERERBBEAANBARERES  FTA
REWZARE ©

HEENR BB RE KRS

(b)  Contract costs

The capitalised contract costs are charged to the consolidated income and expenditure

account on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of the revenue to which the

related cost is recognised, when the Group satisfies performance obligations of respective

service contracts.
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9. EWERIRRHEMRBEE &) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

0 EBURERREREHNEERE (0  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

EUERR R AN EETIRABERENESBERIT « The movements in the allowance for impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
are as follows:

£@
The Group
2023 2022
BET T PEMEF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R At beginning of year 1,549 337
F OmA) /1 Net (decrease)/increase (141) 1212
RER At end of year 1,408 1,549
*EHR
The Council
2023 2022
BET T PE¥EFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF] At beginning of year 1,549 277
F Ojd) /18 Net (decrease)/increase (141) 1272
RER At end of year 1,408 1,549
MESMEEZNSHREANFERARBERTEEN An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using an allowance matrix
EEBEMmMET BEXDIBREFAUSEEXZT to measure expected credit losses. The allowance rates are based on days past due for
RAEFHAMNaRRESETE (1 BEERMTER) o groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type
ZETERMBEMEAR  SEREABARRBER and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
MR ESBRBASN - E AT KRR REEMRNTE money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
Bz EBMAEKEBENER - —RMm s @ EWERZ WA about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
BB — I BOR BIAEF R T LA - trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to

enforcement activity.
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9. EWERRRHEMRBEE &) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 EWERIRENEERE (8 (0  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)

AT #7 6 R AR AR KRR EERBREAER

£E

720233 A31H

using an allowance matrix:

The Group

At 31 March 2023

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the accounts receivable

B
Past due
DR —-= =@A
1188 =@A Rk
ENEA Less than 1to3 Over st
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEHEEEIEX Expected credit loss rate 0.189% 0.832% 6.805% 41.155% 1.221%
BRmEAE (B%TT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 108,093 4,087 338 2,787 115,305
TBHEEEE (A% Tr) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 204 34 23 1,147 1,408
7202263 A31H At 31 March 2022
Past due
DR —= =1&AR
1@ A ={&@A AE
BNHA Less than 1to3 Over 5T
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEEEEEIEX Expected credit loss rate 0.591% 2.518% 3.474% 10.596% 1422%
BREAE (B%Tr) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 93,912 2,343 5778 6,928 108,961
BHEEERE (A% Tr) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 555 59 201 734 1,549

HEENR BB RE KRS
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9. EWERIRRHEMRBEE &) 9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(continued)

(0 EWERIRENEERE (&) (0  Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets (continued)

EENR

720233 A31H

The Council

At 31 March 2023

B
Past due
DR —-= =@A
1188 =@A Rk
ENEA Less than 1to3 Over st
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEHEEEIEX Expected credit loss rate 0.190% 0.832% 6.805% 42.247% 1.228%
BRmEAE (B%TT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 107,571 4,087 338 2,715 114,711
TBHEEEE (A% Tr) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 204 34 23 1,147 1,408
7"202263 A31H At 31 March 2022
Past due
DR —= =1&R
1@ A ={@A A E
BNEA Less than 1to3 Over 5T
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
TEEEEEIEX Expected credit loss rate 0.591% 2.518% 3.474% 10.596% 1422%
BREAE (B%Tr) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 93,902 2,343 5778 6,928 108,951
BHEEERE (A% Tr) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 555 59 201 734 1,549
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10. BE  BRITERREHEX

10. CASH, BANK BALANCES AND FIXED DEPOSITS

£H EENR
The Group The Council

2023 2022 2023 2022

BETT ST BET T R T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

=18 A& 28380 & BiTF 3K Fixed deposits with original maturities 292,908 167,515 289,033 160,237
over 3 months when placed

RITERME S Cash at banks and on hand 1,704,076 1,547,655 1,674,708 1,526,256

ISR R AIRE « $R17/F5K K Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits in 1,996,984 1,715,170 1,963,741 1,686,493

TE BATF R AR R the statement of financial position

ZRIRE Restricted cash (1,538,770) (1,293,127) (1,538,770) (1,293,127)

=@ A& 2| A FE HATE 3k Fixed deposits with original maturities (292,908) (167,515) (289,033) (160,237)
over 3 months when placed

Re MR SEEY Cash and cash equivalents 165,306 254,528 135,938 233,129

M2023F3A31H - £ENRMEENRITERTH
787C1,538,770,000 (2022 & : #8571 1,293,127000 @ 1 HRAE
FRBEBRITEFBEERARBHEBNE ST 2R
BIHE - JHH TR KNIB A BER IR - REAREE
[F18 B $RITRR P E LTS —FHREET ©

M2023F3A31H SEMRTEREEFEREF
A SR 1T B ZXIB A 75 71.30,901,000 (2022 4F ¢ BT
26,434,000) * FZEF R EOIE BT 4B X B BT AR BB A9
I HRRPIFEIREEE -

HEENR BB RE KRS

Cash at banks of the Council and the Group as at 31 March 2023 included HK$1,538,770,000
(2022: HK$1,293,127,000) which were placed in separate project bank accounts and restricted
for the purpose of projects governed by respective Government funding schemes. Any
unspent funding, together with the interest income generated in project bank accounts, is
returned to the Government upon completion of the project or termination of the project
agreement.

Cash at banks of the Group as at 31 March 2023 included HK$30,901,000 (2022:
HK$26,434,000) which were placed with banks in the PRC, the remittance of which is subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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11. BENRIZREMREBES 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

£H £EHR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT ST BET T R T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERTERIR Trade payables 66,253 73,003 64,612 72,412
A8aE (MwEa) Contract liabilities (note a) 306,639 269,783 298,242 265,328
TEWGRIE Receipts in advance
- BB RES — Government disbursement funds 1,363,727 1,085,736 1,363,727 1,085,736
FREERME (HizEb) Provision for annual leave compensation 8,773 9,140 8,773 9,140
(note b)
JERTE A R H AL R Accruals and other payables 104,333 107,088 102,926 105,646
1,849,725 1,544,750 1,838,280 1,538,262
@ BHEafE (@)  Contract liabilities
£ £EIR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BT T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T PR B e Short-term advances received from
customers
- FAR AR — Consultancy 291,949 260,356 283,552 255,901
- 553 —Training 7,611 5674 7,611 5,674
- BUE R TR RIS — Manufacturing support 7,079 3,753 7,079 3,753
AHAaEEE Total contract liabilities 306,639 269,783 298,242 265,328

202154 1B ARENREENROHEHNEBEHER

2 Bl &7 7T 258,218,000 XA 7T 257,315,000 © HK$258,218,000 and HK$257,315,000 respectively.

The balance of contract liabilities at 1 April 2021 for the Group and the Council were
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11. EFRIFREMRBEE (& 11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

(continued)

(b) FRMEERE (b)  Provision for annual leave compensation
SEBMNEELR
The Group and the Council
2023 2022

BE¥T T BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000
R At beginning of year 9,140 7,962
PTG Provision made 17,848 16,436
EEAMNEE Utilised in the year (18,215) (15,258)
RER At end of year 8,773 9,140
BEERBEN)Y  REm—ENEERNZEEE DX Under the Employment Ordinance, staff members who have completed a full year of services
FR(BEFEEHALRARKRE) BZ+t-XERELSHE are entitled to take at least seven days of leave (including Sundays and Public Holidays)
HE-ABEFANNEEH T - N{EMREERRE B = consecutively within one calendar year. Any staff member who leaves his or her employment
EEBHES - BNrlUgEE BEEVB & B #5225 Bl is entitled to annual leave compensation. She/He is entitled to receive in cash the annual
HENHESINE FRAEEERERAREERSH R leave pay earned but not utilised. Provision is made for the employees' untaken annual leave
HARFEREROERFEMETE ° balances at the reporting date.
12. B HHERRRE 12.  AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES
FEW IR B IBAEER - TS - ARENK Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
BiE - demand.
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13. EREEE 13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
@ &KH (@) The Group
WAERME HEWE
Office Leased #zg
equipment properties Total
BT T BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
R2021 4818 At 1 April 2021 1,270 104 1,374
FEFE Depreciation for the year (423) 91) (514)
BMERE Exchange adjustments - 1 1
2022838318 K At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022
2022418 847 14 861
NE Addition - 199 199
FERE Depreciation for the year (423) (67) (490)
HE Exchange adjustments - (1) 1)
R2023F 3 A31H At 31 March 2023 424 145 569
b)) E£ELE (b)  The Council
WAERME
Office equipment
PEEEFIT
HKS$'000
202164818 At 1 April 2021 1,270
FEHE Depreciation for the year (423)
MR2022F3 A31HXR202F481H  At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 847
FEFE Depreciation for the year (423)
202343 A31H At 31 March 2023 424
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14. HEEE

14. LEASE LIABILITIES

L | *EHR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT ¥ T BT T PEMEFIT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
REF] At beginning of year 927 1,445 9209 1,332
NE Addition 199 = - -
MESZH (FFaF22) Interest expense (note 22) 32 44 22 43
Bff Payments (520) (565) (465) (466)
BEFHE Exchange adjustments (2) 3 - =
RER At end of year 636 927 466 909
ER B TSR R MO EIER Reconciliation to the statement of
financial position:
mENEE Current liabilities 533 461 466 443
JERBEE Non-current liabilities 103 466 - 466
M3 A31H At 31 March 636 927 466 909
15. #ES 15. TOTAL FUNDS
5 EENR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEAREME (HiE@) Capital subvention fund (note a) 92,969 98,685 92,969 98,685
WA & B (Kt (b)) Revenue reserve (note b) 536,031 492,297 517,539 478473
629,000 590,982 610,508 577,158
;e EE (KR ©) Exchange reserve (note c) 1,049 3,155
630,049 594,137
PR (iR (d) Non-controlling interests (note d) 2,003 2,006
632,052 596,143

HEENR BB RE KRS
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15. #EL (®)

(@) EAXEHE

15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)

(@) Capital subvention fund

SEBMNEELR
The Group and the Council

2023 2022

BT T PE¥EFIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

REH) At beginning of year 98,685 105,610
BAWRZIRE Transfer to income and expenditure account (5,716) (6,925)
REXR At end of year 92,969 98,685

(b) WAEBIFEE (b)  Revenue reserve
£ *EIHE
The Group The Council

2023 2022 2023 2022

BETT BT BT T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REH] At beginning of year 492,297 432,713 478,473 422,182
FARBH Surplus for the year 43,734 59,584 39,066 56,291
RER Atend of year 536,031 492,297 517,539 478,473

WAEBRRERER T CHREBNMEE RN R AR

S ETIE ML ©

(0 HBERE

accumulated surplus or deficit.

(c)  Exchange reserve

This reserve was created for the purpose of recording the Group's and the Council’s

L |
The Group

2023 2022

BT T BET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

REH) At beginning of year 3,155 2,234
BMEPRERR B REOELEZR Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of (2,106) 921

operations in the PRC

RER At end of year 1,049 3,155

BERBEBEERREETBEINEBI L RRMELN

BIEREH o

of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong.
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15. #EL (&)

(d) FFERER

15. TOTAL FUNDS (continued)

(d)  Non-controlling interests

=6
The Group

2023 2022

BET T PEEEFIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

R At beginning of year 2,006 1,713
FEERE RS Share of exchange reserve (189) 84
FREEMLRR Share of surplus for the year 186 209
RER At end of year 2,003 2,006

16. EEMEBHNBAER

FEBFEERMB

RIBH T E A E B 200956 A 22 B2 T8 (17K
ZHERR) ((HE=ek]) 818 - £ENBRANUE
REERNFZEMYFEAENESHNSERBIERRH
&> T EMARER  ZHEHEKETESEREENR
REBPTRFEEMESHEERTEEMBIEER15% -
2mymB$FmﬁT§%@%m$ﬂ&ﬁ%¢u%%
1SHBIRT R B R £ B 58 A7 7T 026318 (2021/2022
Eﬁ HBIL023618)  WWHRIBEANS AFERER/E) -
2022203 F EW BT EEHB AR R B L2138
(202172022 %% : BT 212218) - £E N B IRE TR
REEANFEENUGEE2EBDAMESNBTES
G

20222023 FEEE N BB E S8R KEERE &
BT A B AFIER (2021/2022FF : @ L) ©

HEEAR B AZHBETRE RIIEHRE  HKPC INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2022-23 43

16. GOVERNMENT SUBVENTION FOR RECURRENT ACTIVITIES

Annual block grant

In accordance with paragraph 8.1 of the Memorandum of Administrative Arrangement
("MAA") dated 22 June 2009 signed between the Government and the Council, the Council
is allowed to keep any savings from its annual block grant as reserves. At any one point in
time the level of accumulated savings from the Council's annual block grant shall not exceed
15% of its annual block grant in the current financial year. The government subvention for
the year of 2022/23 includes the grant from Innovation and Technology Fund for Automotive
Platforms and Application Systems (APAS) R&D Centre of HK$26.3 million (2021/22: HK$23.6
million) which is not classified as annual block grant. The total block grant of the Council for
the year of 2022/23 was HK$213.0 million (2021/22: HK$212.2 million). The annual block grant
from the Government in the current and prior years has been fully expended by the Council
in accordance with the MAA.

The annual block grant of the Council for the year of 2022/23 was entirely accounted for as
Government subvention income in the income and expenditure account (2021/22: same).



17. BREWA 17. SERVICE INCOME
£ *EHR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
FiaE BT T IT BT PEEEFIT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
KEEFEHZ KA Revenue from contracts with
customers
- B AR — Consultancy 617,370 544,936 584,342 512,474
= —Training 23,589 25,304 23,589 25,304
- BB TR RS — Manufacturing support 17,334 18,609 17,335 18,609
-RESLERE ~ Exhibitions and study 3,911 2,144 3,911 2,144
mission
- BAEGEEYIEAR — Hong Kong Jockey Club @) 7,593 6,005 7,593 6,005
funded project
REBFEH 2 BIA Total revenue from contracts (b) 669,797 596,998 636,770 564,536
with customers
EE)E A Grant income
- BT HBhIE B — Government funded projects 82,231 69,210 82,231 69,210
752,028 666,208 719,001 633,746
@ BE203F38318LEE £EHRDWE (@)  Allocation from The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust is for operating an

AR ESREETESHE TS5, 891,000(2021/22
& BI05484851) R HF BT AR A R R
= BRI AR MEE @R 2 -

44 £EHR BIIRBERE RIS

information technology consultancy service and capacity building programme for
non-governmental organisations and HK$5,891,000 (2021/22: HK$5,484,851) have

been received during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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17. BRBWA (@)

(b) HERUAREKRE

17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)

(b)  Timing of revenue recognition

£53 XEIR
The Group The Council

2023 2022 2023 2022

BETT BT BET T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RE— R Ata point in time 171,164 154,396 171,164 154,396
BERF R HERS Over time 498,526 442,602 465,606 410,140
REBEAHZ BN Total revenue from contracts with 669,690 596,998 636,770 564,536

customers

(@ TREFAEAREHHERZBASE - HRR

(c)  Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was included in contract

SO AGHREN - liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

2023 2023
=5 EENR
The Group The Council
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000
A AR 75 Consultancy 119,643 115,553
=3l Training 3,985 3,985
BT RIRTE Manufacturing support 3,320 3,320
126,948 122,858

2022 2022
L | EENR
The Group The Council
BT BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000
B8 AR 75 Consultancy 132,500 132,098
=l Training 1,486 1,486
B ETRRS Manufacturing support 2,874 2,874
136,860 136,458

HEENR BB RE KRS
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17. BRBWA (@)

d) REBHEE

X — (AR ERNRANS - BROBEETRIE
HARTE R o BER R R RRNBAMS - BOE
EREERHRB AR HBEMERK - —RERMRS
A ERE P RN -

(€) R2021F4818  NEBRLEEHBREKEE
REERD B A TT 16,062,000 K78 7T 15,710,000 ©

17. SERVICE INCOME (continued)

(d)  Performance obligations

For service income recognised at a point in time, the performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of services. For service income recognised over time, the performance obligation
is satisfied over time as services are rendered. Short-term advances are normally required
before rendering the services.

(e)  The balance of trade receivables at 1 April 2021 for the Group and the Council were
HK$16,062,000 and HK$15,710,000 respectively.

18. Hfthlt A 18. OTHER INCOME
&5 *EHR
The Group The Council

2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
A2 WA Rental income 3,232 3,389 3,231 3,389
FEIA Interest income 6,518 817 6,340 662
FEEUA Sundry income 8,008 7,491 7,796 7,278
BTt ED Government grants 4,252 8,951 4,252 8,951
22,010 20,648 21,619 20,280

19. BEHFE 19. STAFF EMOLUMENTS

£H E£ENR
The Group The Council

2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BT BET T EEETIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
e RZEH M Salaries and variable pay 421,243 392,264 412,346 383,844
KM & Gratuities 3,588 3,581 3,588 3,581
R TIE « BER R EAER, Overtime, subsistence and other allowances 17,401 14,892 17,401 14,892
BESKAN - REHRE S Pension costs — defined contribution plans 32,019 30,207 32,019 30,207
BEREAE Medical benefits scheme 8,051 8,024 8,051 8,024
482,302 448,968 473,405 440,548

B E it oh - B B S H B 7T22,557,000 (2022 4F ¢ B TT
28444,000) Bt AEEREENBEB BB L -

In addition to the above, staff costs amounting to HK$22,557,000 (2022: HK$28,444,000) have
been charged to project related expenses of the Group and the Council.
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20. SREEABHMH

SARETEA B Bt H A 5 B & A E ) BIR 4 AR AT U
BE B (Fre 2B BEVRAFNAES

20. SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION

0 Mg

The aggregate remuneration (salaries, allowances, benefits-in-kind and provident fund
contributions) received by the senior management for their services rendered to the Group

T and the Council are listed as follows:
SEBREENR
The Group and the Council

2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BEY - BE Mohamed Din Butt, Executive Director 5,328 4735
RIS - BREIFTEE Lawrence Cheung, Chief Innovation Officer 3,784 3,546
R, - HEEISRE Edmond Lai, Chief Digital Officer 3,814 3,391
WIEE  BREERE Vivian Lin, Chief Operating Officer 3,254 2,985
16,180 14,657

21. ENREBEESERENEH 21.

RER  EENBEFEREMESEKEHER IR
B ) RIR A IR AT Hr B (20224F : &) -

REMUNERATION OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

During the year, the Chairman and other members of the Council did not receive any
remuneration for their services rendered to the Council (2022: Nil).

22, Hfhix i 22. OTHER EXPENSES
£ *EIHE
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BT T EEET T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
— M RATEE General and administrative expenses 67,306 45339 65,953 44,424
18 B ABREsZ Project related expenses 360,802 312,985 344,028 294,332
HEYE - EMXEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and 5,187 114 5,148 114
equipment
EREENHEEE Loss on disposal of intangible asset 4 = - -
e Depreciation

- - BB AR — property, plant and equipment 36,836 40,966 36,573 40,777
- EREEE - right-of-use assets 490 514 423 423
| A Amortisation of intangible assets 7,048 4,594 7,038 4,584
HEBBZHE Interest expense on lease liabilities 32 44 22 43
IZERET BN Auditor’s remuneration 1,027 1,015 500 480
MRS Sundry expenses 13,916 15,050 13,463 14,706
492,648 420,621 473,148 399,883

HEENR BB RE KRS
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23. FriE8%

(@) HFEWZIREFIRIIFEHRA -

23. INCOME TAX

(@)  Income taxin the consolidated income and expenditure account

represents:
£
The Group
2023 2022
BT T BT
HK$’000 HKS$'000
ANER - BEAINE E R Current tax — outside Hong Kong Provision for the year 167 170

HRNAEE N RERTS BARIEE S (BRG] 5 87 15FA
REMAAETEHIA - RBABREBHEH

HREENRHNB BB RARNREZ 202343318
FENEERRBAEN  RTEELESFEHEE
(20224 : £&) ©

BB B~ B KBS 4B 52021 F 1255 - 2022 4F
BRRAECE— L EENMICEMSHERRER)
HE 1 RE T B AT B A BRI R R R - R
MFATS T EBBARE100E T - RZSER 25%
(2022 4F : 25%) #FH + FLE AR 20% (2022 4F : 20%) : F
EABFAEEBBARE 100 B TEERARE 3008
TLHY » FERZ R B 89 25% (2022 4F = 50%) B 0 R
#520% (20224 : 20%) : FREMBAAGEBERARKE
300 & TTH] + 12 25% BB (2022 4F : 25%) #AFY

The Council is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax as the Council has been granted
exemption from all Hong Kong taxes by the Inland Revenue Department under Section 87 of
the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the Council's Hong Kong subsidiaries has been
made as they did not have assessable profit during the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

According to the Announcement of No.12 (2021) and No. 13 (2022) issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Taxation Administration of the PRC, “Further Implementing Income Tax
Preferential Policies for Small and Micro Enterprises’, the tax rate for the Council’s Mainland
subsidiaries are charged at a reduced rate as below: for the annual taxable profits not
exceeded RMB1 million, 25% (2022: 25%) of such amount is taxable with a tax rate of 20%
(2022: 20%); for annual taxable profits exceeded RMB1 million but less than RMB3 million,
25% (2022: 50%) of such amount is taxable with a tax rate of 20% (2022: 20%); for annual
taxable profits exceeded RMB3 million, such amount will be taxable at a tax rate of 25% (2022:
25%).
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23. Fis® (@)

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

(b) FiFKZHEESFTREGUE AR REHNY (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting surplus at
iR : applicable tax rates:
£
The Group
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
BRI AR Surplus before taxation 38,371 53,038
R AEERBRAKE Notional tax on surplus before taxation, 5,650 8,300
FTERRATRSRNEETIE calculated at rates applicable in the jurisdictions concerned
AR AT IE R 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (161,713) (146,843)
A B TE R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 156,230 138,713
ERBES Income tax expense 167 170
(0 HEMBRRREMTIEEE : (0  Movement in tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial
position:
£E
The Group
2023 2022
BET T BT
HK$’000 HKS'000
REA] At beginning of year 162 212
FEEE Provision for the year 167 170
BB EEH PRC corporate income tax paid (271) (228)
HE R Exchange adjustments (12) 8
RER Atend of year 46 162
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23. FRBH (8)

(d) JEREHREEENRAS

TEREIR - SEAFIEEIBL AEIT1,747,000 (2022
F : #781,574,000) Al EERMZEL R EENHE A
AR R RERFFE - EBERE AR KRERER
BH B AR ERTFE AT MRS ER - AR
HEZMBEBRERECHIEEE - o] AEEINFE
&8 (EEAR B A KB A 7E eyl B eI T EE B
BroN) AT MR HI A EIE S R BRI B A R AR
REFRFEFE o o AT B A 7 A B A AT A (3
T I8 E548 578 7T 86,000 (2022 4F : #7T.312,000) * #57E
AEFEREE o

BIREEMERERERGG - HRBEHAEHEA
FARIAE A B3R N8 B RS - & IS AT E R
- RGN [EERAE] BEEIHRF S M
B SREEHRMERE - EEHE - (BAERKRAEZE
BREEMBSEERBHE  REZEMNBHRBR
BB EERA o FEULBER T + R E A B AR RS
HNEE B B2 4 L B9 A% B % 10% 3k B AR A0 177 8 B R
MTEINRE - NEREEANFEE 10% © 26 iSRRI
Eph AR BIFT 8 A B 2EE FI A9 7T 14,268,000 (2022 4F -
P57T10,588,000) B I\t 2= REHRIEER TH B A o

BEeKERR  PEAMHEBA RN 2023F3 A 31
HA1202263 A31 BOARD BB GTEE AREARSE
%o At HRASE AR NIESZERIEE RE[E
WA BERMZEEAAERARRTIEED @ B
bt AEEWARASEE T REEFRARD AT
B HRELEFSHARE -

EE N 2023F3 A31 BA2022F3 A31 B &EB T
RHERNEERIEEE

23. INCOME TAX (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses of approximately HK$ 1,747,000
(2022: HKS$1,574,000) that are available for offsetting against future taxable profits of
subsidiaries in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these tax losses as, in the opinion of the management, it is uncertain whether
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Unused tax losses (except those related to a subsidiary in China) can be carried forward
without time limit. The subsidiary in China has unused tax losses of HK$86,000 (2022:
HK$312,000) which will expire in five years.

Under the EIT Law and Implementation Regulations, PRC withholding income tax is
applicable to interest and dividends payable to investors that are “non-tax resident
enterprises’, which do not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which
have such establishment or place of business but the relevant income is not effectively
connected with the establishment or place of business, to the extent such interest or
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such circumstances, dividends distributed
from the PRC subsidiaries to off-shore group entities shall be subject to the withholding tax
at 10% or a lower treaty rate. For the Group, the applicable tax rate is 10%. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$14,268,000 (2022: HK$10,588,000).

The Members of the Council affirm that the undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries as
of 31 March 2023 and 2022 will be reserved for the expansion of operations. Consequently,
the Group has not provided for the deferred tax liabilities in respect of withholding tax on
the remaining undistributed earnings of the Group's PRC entities as the Group is capable of
controlling the timing of reversal of such temporary difference, and it is highly likely that such
temporary difference would not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The Group has no material deferred tax liabilities requiring recognition as at 31 March 2023
and 2022.
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24, AEYE

ERER - WARERS P BERRAB BN ERRED

24. COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at the reporting date not provided for in the consolidated

T financial statements were as follows:
SEBREENR
The Group and the Council
2023 2022
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
B4 Contracted for 31,629 24,396

25. REFIEINEHMIA

BEREH  SEHEBMTEMNRESENT

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

as follows:

The carrying amounts of each category of financial instruments as at the reporting date are

EREE Financial assets
55 *EIHE
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BT T BET T BT
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
DEERATENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost
FEUTER R Accounts receivable 17,789 23447 17,397 23,447
& ME (b fE W FR IR Deposits and other receivables 50,455 45,499 49,310 44,205
BE - RITERREER Cash, bank balances and fixed deposits 1,996,984 1,715,170 1,963,741 1,686,493
(FrzE10) (note 10)

FEUHI B A B F0E Amounts due from subsidiaries - = 1,238 1,276
2,065,228 1,784,116 2,031,686 1,755,421
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25. ZERHEINEMITAE (B

25. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

S =N Financial liabilities
£53 XEIR
The Group The Council
2023 2022 2023 2022
BETT BT BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LIBERATTENESREE Financial liabilities at amortised cost
BIEERMERAEEMREEE  Finandal liabilities included in accounts 1,542,755 1,265,827 1,539,707 1,263,794
2B aE (k1) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11)

HEBE (KizE14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 636 927 466 909
FERTHI B A RIZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - = 11,685 12,024
1,543,391 1,266,754 1,551,858 1,276,727

26. TREAREERAAEGE

SEEEREBBRTSELREE RPEL  FX
RONE R - ELE R RREENY B EERR K

JREIANAETR - BfeanT

@ EERM

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest-rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of
the Group's business. The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management

policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below:

(@  Creditrisk

EENEEREBFTEREETER  THERXR -4 The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to bank balances, fixed deposits, contract
BERERER SEECHEEERSE  WABE assets and accounts receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and exposure to

EREERBEE o

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

@ EERRE (&) (@)  Credit risk (continued)
2023 F3 H31 HF12022 F 3 A 31 HHIR S /E

R FialE R

TR 2023F3 A31 HAM20224F3 F31 HER K
SENEEERMNEEEZkeaEERR (F2ER

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2023 and 2022

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past due information unless other

BMEER  BRIEEMERAIEEBNH TV ER A information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at

BANBERTER) RFEEEBRDER

£H

A2023F3 A31H

The Group

31 March 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 March 2023

+=@A
FAHEEEE
Exposure to 12-
month expected ZHEBREEESE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
(R (27
F1RER H2MER HEIMER Simplified B
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
JEUS AR R Accounts receivable* - - - 17,789 17,789
EREE Contract assets - - - 97,516 97,516
& M E A FE Y RIE Deposits and other
receivables
—Emr - Normal** 50,455 - - - 50,455
BE - R/ITFERK Cash, bank balances,
TEHTFR and fixed deposits 1,996,984 - - - 1,996,984
2,047,439 - - 115,305 2,162,744
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

@ EERE (@)
L

74202263 A31H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

The Group

As at 31 March 2022

+=1@A
TREMEEEE
Exposure to 12-
month expected ZHTEHIEEEE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
L%
1R F2REER FEIHER Simplified wEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT T BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEUSBR 2N Accounts receivable* = = = 23,447 23,447
BHEE Contract assets = = = 85,514 85,514
& ME b FE U RIE Deposits and other
receivables
- [EE* — Normal** 45,499 - - - 45,499
Re  BRITFERE Cash, bank balances,
TEHRTFR and fixed deposits 1,715,170 - - 1,715,170
1,760,669 - - 108,961 1,869,630

* HASEERRESOENEERRNEHEENS
AR ffs 7 Bel 70 EERE O B RN A TS SRR BT RE 9 % -

** ERASREENEMREEEY S8 0 AW RERER
Rk BA R B P18 R AR E R AR AR L7
B ZFEENEEEARKER[ER] -

R 2023F3 A31 H © £E R AR A FEUER GBI
BR SRAREARY 47% (2022 FF : 50%) °

R2023FE3A831H  EEAATFNANEENREYN
& EBEER 68% (2022 F : 70%) ©

HREEEERBRIE—TEENN - FITNIRE9 °

For accounts receivable and contract assets to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

*%

The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 March 2023, 47% (2022: 50%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Group’s five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2023, 68% (2022: 70%) of the total contract assets related to the Group’s five
largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising are set
outin note 9.
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

(@) fEERE (&)
EENR

720233 H31H

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

The Council

As at 31 March 2023

+=@A
HHEEER

Exposure to 12-

month expected > HEHEEESE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
b5 E
E1RE E2MER EIRR Simplified #azg
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEUBR TR Accounts receivable* - - - 17,397 17,397
AREE Contract assets - - - 97,314 97,314
FEUPT I A BIRIE Amount due from subsidiaries 1,238 - - - 1,238
Ez%fl],ﬁé@r’é”ﬁlw\ Deposits and other
receivables
B — Normal** 49,310 - - - 49,310
e - IRITER L EBATF IR Cash, bank balances,
and fixed deposits 1,963,741 - - - 1,963,741
2,014,289 - - 114,711 2,129,000
R2022%3A31A As at 31 March 2022
+={@A
TREMEEEE
Exposure to 12-
month expected 2 HIRHEEEE
credit loss Exposure to lifetime expected credit losses
Ek9apzs
F1RER FE2RER FEIHER Simplified FEEE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BT BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JE s AR R > Accounts receivable* = - - 23,447 23,447
AHEE Contract assets = = = 85,504 85,504
FEUHI A BIR Amount due from subsidiaries 1,276 = = = 1,276
Hzéﬂﬁﬁiﬂﬂ’ﬁﬂ&m Deposits and other
receivables
— [EE** — Normal** 44,205 - - - 44,205
& RITFERMIE BATF 5K Cash, bank balances,
and fixed deposits 1,686,493 - - - 1,686,493
1,731,974 - - 108,951 1,840,925
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

(@ fEERE (&)

* SLAEE ) B RRERORNBUERMAWEEM
5 0 AR R A ) B R I TS SRR MR 9 R o

> Bt ASRBENEMREEEY EaH R W EEHNE
Rk RVA E B Y18 ERIA KM E B AR KR L7t
B ZEFEENEREEEBHER[ER] -

R2023F3A31H - £EENBRAARETF M EKIRG
JE U BR R 4R BB ) 46% (2022 £F : 50%) ©

R2023F3A31H  £ENRAARFEMNANEEN
BHVEERREEN 68% (2022 FF 1 70%) ©

MRNEENBREREEREERRNE - THED
1 BIRBEEQ ©

(b) REEZREE

EENBARTHELRDESHER  NRRRHR
LRSS ENHEBAOERAETHEANE
FEFTTE -

TRAFIEFEITEFBEERRERA Z HERE 2
HER - WIRBRTAARBMBARSRE (BIEATTHH
REFHZMEXH  ERZBAE - ARRERER
Z VR RGFE 2 M S ) RAKERAEEN BRI
FEMNRZZFEHAMSH -

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(@)  Credit risk (continued)

* For accounts receivable and contract assets to which the Council applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 9.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in other current assets are considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 31 March 2023, 46% (2022: 50%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the
Council's five largest customers.

As at 31 March 2023, 68% (2022: 70%) of the total contract assets related to the Council's five
largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Council 's exposure to credit risk arising from
accounts receivable are set out in note 9.

(b)  Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to satisfy its contractual and reasonably foreseeable obligations as
they fall due.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group and
the Council can be required to pay.
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

b) REBEEZERE (&)

(b)  Liquidity risk (continued)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

2023
HETH
RITH BB—FE
HeRE R—FR NBWF
Total REER More than
FRMEIE contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2years
BETT BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
£8 The Group
HEEE (MF14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 636 643 539 104
BIEERMERREMREEE  Finandal liabilities included in accounts
Z B aE (1) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 1,542,755 1,542,755 1,542,755 -
1,543,391 1,543,398 1,543,294 104
EENR The Council
HEARE (iF14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 466 466 466 -
BIEERMERR R EMRBE®E  Financial liabilities included in accounts
2B aE (k1) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 1,539,707 1,539,707 1,539,707 -
JEAT BT B8 A B RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 11,685 11,685 11,685 -
1,551,858 1,551,858 1,551,858 -
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A 26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

(b) REBESEE (&) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
2022
HETH
RITH HB—FE
HERE R—FR NBRE
Total REER More than
BREE contractual Within 1 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted year or on less than
amount cash flows demand 2 years
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
£8 The Group
HEAE (Fiz14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 927 949 483 466
BIRERMERREMREEE  Finandal liabilities included in accounts
Z B aE () payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 1,265,827 1,265,827 1,265,827 -
1,266,754 1,266,776 1,266,310 466
EENR The Council
HEARE (iF14) Lease liabilities (note 14) 909 932 466 466
BRERMNEREREEMRBEME  Financial liabilities included in accounts
2B aE (k1) payable and other current liabilities
(note 11) 1,263,794 1,263,794 1,263,794 -
FERH B A R FUE Amounts due to subsidiaries 12,024 12,024 12,024 =
1,276,727 1,276,750 1,276,284 466
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26. TRIEMREERAAEE A

(©  FIZ=E
HE N BRA B B EE R R @R
(d) FMESEE
B S BR A B R & E R INE @R o

(e) EAXEHE

SEMRERN [BEX] BREESHNAEERED - &
ErekREEMERRRETRIEBMELN
DI DEN ©

SEEREANEEARREREBEEARNFEL
2 UREREEERATELRRI N HOELE -

SEZRREENEAEERTE  EHERHREEEE
MERGEE - EAFERNAFE £EENRREE
el P /88 2 R BE AR R BISNARHE N0 B AR TE FTARIR ©

27. BBAERS

BRAMBRERERBENR S REHRIN  SEBER
FRETATREB TR

SENRHNEEEXERBBNTBREEERE - AR
BEASEENREREEATES  BMEENRE
B 2HNRZ SR REB RS WKRAKREAD
RIIR - R FENRBEBRFREENRESE
BT IO IR 5

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE (continued)

() Interest rate risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to interest rate risk.

(d)  Currency risk

The Council considers that there is no significant exposure to currency risk.

(e) Capital management

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of total funds. Trading balances that
arise as a result of trading transactions with other group companies are not regarded by the
Group as capital.

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to enable the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due for
the foreseeable future.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the
capital management practices of the Group. Neither the Council nor its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement in the current and prior years.

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group entered into the following related party transactions during the year:

Council Membership of the Council is appointed by the Chief Executive of the Government.
The Government has significant influence over the Council, and transactions between
the Council and the Government are considered to be related party transactions and are
identified separately in these financial statements. During the year, the Council had the
following related party transactions with the Government and Council Members:

2023 2022

BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

W E B - AR EMES) Receipt of government subvention used for recurrent activities 239,283 235,771
BT B Government grant 4,252 8,951
REBATEARFSUA (FiFEa) Service income from the Government (note a) 203,658 187,306
KB BFEBNEB IR A (Fistb) Service income from government funding schemes (note b) 186,245 176,203
WABEENBEESKEGBAIEE Income from entities related to members of the Council 3,336 1,289
REELEENBESSREERRIEIE Purchases from entities related to members of the Council 2,955 470
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27. BBEXRS (4

Wi

@  REBANRBRARSRERRER  MEER - B
B XBER  WEERBESHEE - MWEREDE
BEEAR - JERETRBFER R BRI 5 E
MES » i AERI AU A R IR AR e (R SR URER A o

(b)  REBFEBENRAERFIEE (RIEANITER
#T2AE) RIREWERRBZHE - WERE S
BB A B BEAF R E R HA MBS - A
7 A R R 175 3 AR URER A o

28. MIBIHREALE

KREA R SRR BAEE N B 2023F 7 A 20 B &AL FFAT
B o

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a

The service income from the Government relates to projects in environmental management,
technology development, information technology, business management, secretariat projects
with the Government, etc., which were obtained either by a competitive process or through
partnership agreements with various government departments and bureaus, and the income was
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

(b) The service income from government funding schemes relates to projects in research and
development (excluding projects acting as implementation agent) and secretariat projects which
were obtained by a competitive process or through agreements with Innovation and Technology
Commission, and the income was charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

28. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 20 July
2023.
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